HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 04, 2001
1:52 PM
TAPE HFC 01 — 72, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair WIllianms called the House Finance Commttee neeting
to order at 1:52 PM

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bill WIlIlianms, Co-Chair
Representative El don Miul der, Co-Chair
Representative Con Bunde, Vice-Chair
Representative Eric Croft
Represent ati ve John Davi es
Representative Carl Mses
Representative Ri chard Foster
Representative John Harris
Represent ati ve Ken Lancaster

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bill Hudson
Representative Ji m Wit aker

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Donald dson; Mary Jackson, Staff, Senator John
Tor gerson; Cat heri ne Rear don, Director, Di vi si on of
Cccupational Licensing, Departnment of Community and Econom c
Devel opnent; Gerald Luckhaupt, Attorney, Legislative Legal &
Research Services; Dean Guaneli, Chief Assistant Attorney
Gener al , Depart ment of Law; Roger Wor t man, Staff,
Representative Pete Kott.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Lt. Steve Dunnagan, Anchorage; Fred Esposito, Seward.
SUMVARY

HB 102 An  Act relating to the theft of propelled
vehi cl es.

HB 102 was reported out of Conmttee wth a "do
pass" recomendation and with fiscal notes by the
Al aska Court System dated 2/23/01 and Depart nent
of Corrections dated 2/23/01.

House Fi nance Committee 1 04/ 04/ 01 1:52 PM



SB 58 An Act relating to the nmenbership and quorum
requi renents of the State Medical Board.

SB 58 was reported out of Conmttee with a "do
pass" recomendation and with a fiscal note by
Departnent of Community & Econom c Devel opnent
dated 2/07/01

CS SB 137(FIN) An Act relating to the allocation of noney
appropriated to the Alaska Human Resource
I nvest ment Council; and providing for an effective
dat e.

CSSB 137 (FIN was HEARD and HELD in Committee for
further consideration.

#SB58
SENATE BILL NO. 58

An  Act relating to the nenbership and quorum
requi renents of the State Medical Board.

SENATOR DONALD OLSON explained that SB 58 would add a
physi cian assistant to the nenbership of the Al aska State
Medi cal Board. As a consequence, the quorumrequirenment for
meetings would al so be adj usted. Under current |law, there
are seven nenbers on the Medical Board. However, only
physi ci ans and public nenbers with no financial connection
to the health care industry may serve.

Senator O son commented that it is inportant for the work of
the board that a physician assistant be added. Having such
representation would facilitate the deliberations and
broaden the experience of the board. He stated that it
woul d increase the board' s effectiveness in maintaining the
quality of health care services and issues in Al aska.

Vice-Chair Bunde voiced concern that by adding another
menber would create an even nunber nenbership. Senat or
O son explained that often tines all attendees of the
Medi cal Board are not present, thus making the vote an odd
nunber .

Vi ce-Chair Bunde referenced nurse practioners and asked if
they would have a role in the proposed |egislation.
Senator O son explained that they were listed under the
Al aska State Nursing Board. He acknow edged that there has
been a recommendation that they be on the Alaska State
Medi cal Board, hoping that it would stream i ne sone issues.

Representative Harris inquired how the Board would handle a
four-four split. Senator O son advised that rarely has a
pol ari zation occurred on the Board. He reiterated that the
chances were rare.

House Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 04/ 01 1:52 PM



Represent ati ve Harris guesti oned t he geogr aphi cal
representation of the Board. Senator O son noted that
during the time he was on the board, there was only one
doctor from Bush Al aska. He noted that there are five
hospitals in those areas. Most commonly, the majority of
t he physicians cone fromthe Anchorage area.

CATHERI NE REARDON, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF OCCUPATI ONAL
LI CENSI NG, DEPARTMENT OF COWMUNI TY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPIVENT,
testified that the Alaska State Medical Board and the
Departnent does support the proposed | egislation. She
stated that the Departnent does not object to the even
nunber of physicians on the Board. She pointed out that the
menbership of the Legislature consists of an even nunber.
Additionally, there is another board that has an even nunber
and that they have had no probl ens.

Representative Foster MOVED to report SB 58 out of Commttee
wi th individual recommendations and with the acconpanying
fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

SB 58 was reported out of Conmttee wth a "do pass”
recoomendation and with a fiscal note by Departnment of
Community & Econom ¢ Devel opnent dated 2/07/01.

#HB102
HOUSE BI LL NO. 102

An Act relating to the theft of propelled vehicles.

ROGER WORTMAN, STAFF, REPRESENTATI VE PETE KOTT, noted that
the legislation focuses on the crine of vehicle theft and
equal penalties associated wth the taking of propelled
vehi cl es wi thout the owners' perm ssion.

M. Wrtman added that HB 102 woul d provide a new el enent in
the comm ssion of taking the propelled vehicle of another
when the owner is deprived of the use of the vehicle for a
specific period of tinme and incurs expenses as a result of
the loss of use of that vehicle. The bill would anend the
definition for "all terrain vehicles" as well as, the
definition for "watercraft”.

Representative Croft asked why the definition of "water
craft” in Section 3 had been narrowed. M.  Wortnman
explained that as it stands now, “water craft” could be a
Class C felony; "Jet Ski"™ has been placed under propelled
vehicles and it would not constitute an inmediate crine.

Representative Croft referenced Section 1, which added the
“seven days or nore” concept. M. Wrtnan stated the House
Judiciary Commttee had determ ned that anmount; it was not
in the original bill. He noted that M. Luckhaupt could

House Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 04/ 01 1:52 PM



answer any legal questions pertaining to the bill or
statutes invol ved.

M. Wrtman explained that if an owner of a vehicle was
deprived from using the vehicle for any period of tinme, a
dollar anmount was inserted into the bill, which would
reimburse that individual. The drafter chose the seven days
or nore as an arbitrary figure for determning the rental
f ee.

Representative Croft inquired the current caliber that this
crime was rated at. M. Wrtmn explained that it would
raise the theft of a snow nachine from the current
m sdeneanor, and | ower the Jet Ski theft froma fel ony down.
It would renove the “Jet Ski” out of the definition of
wat ercraft and place it under propelled vehicles. He noted
that at this time, the theft of a Jet Ski is recognized as a
Cl ass C felony. In Section 1, the theft of a vehicle nust
nmeet criteria of worth $1,000 dollars or nore.

Representative Harris asked if an owner were deprived of use
of the vehicle for less than seven days, what would the
r eper cussi ons be.

CGCERALD LUCKHAUPT, ATTORNEY, LEQ SLATIVE LEGAL & RESEARCH
SERVI CES, advised that if a person is deprived fromthe use
of the vehicle for less than seven days, it would be a
violation of a Class A msdeneanor, vehicle theft in the
second degree. The judgnent associated with that could be a
maxi mum of 1 year in jail and with a fine inposed between
$1, 000 and $5, 000 dol | ars.

Representative Davies inquired penalties associated for a
Class C felony. M. Luckhaupt stated that penalty would be
up to five years in jail and with a fine up to $50, 000
dol | ars maxi num

Representative Davies ascertained that the five years in
jail with a maxi mum fine of $50,000 dollars was extrene for
stealing a Jet Ski for seven days. He asked M. Luckhaupt
if the characterization would “bal ance out” the m sdeneanor
and felony statutes. M. Luckhaupt replied that the
severity of the recourse depends on the "eye of the
behol der”. He commented that if he were a Jet Ski owner, he
woul d be upset that the abuse was dropped from an automatic
f el ony. The bill is dropping Jet Skis down and woul d add
another way for all propelled vehicles to be noved up to a
f el ony.

Representative Davies asked if it was possible that the
owner could be deprived of use of the vehicle because the
Court inpounded it for other uses. M. Luckhaupt advised
that if the vehicle had been abandoned outside the owned

House Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 04/ 01 1:52 PM



area, while it was not available to the owner, the owner
woul d still be deprived of its use.

Representative Davies countered that with a scenario that
the police kept the vehicle and the vehicle could not be
used. M. Luckhaupt noted that provisions had been added in
the past couple years that woul d address search and warrant
of properties. He advised that the police no |onger kept
cars that were stolen fromthe owner for evidence during the
trial.

Representative J. Davies asked if the sane action would
happen wth snow machines and other such vehicles. M.
Luckhaupt replied that he did not know why the police would
hold on to a snow nachine, unless they planned to use it for
evi dence. However, if any other major offense occurs wth
the snow machine, then the police would have recourse to
hold on to that vehicle.

Co-Chair Ml der MOVED to report CS HB 102 (JUD) out of
Commttee wth individual recommendations and wth the
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTION, it
was so ordered.

CS HB 102 (JUD) was reported out of Commttee with a "do
pass" recommendation and with fiscal notes by the Al aska
Cour t System dated 2/23/01 and the Departnent of
Corrections dated 2/23/01.

#SB137
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 137(FIN)

An Act relating to the allocation of noney appropriated
to the Al aska Human Resource Investnent Council; and
providing for an effective date.

MARY JACKSON, STAFF, SENATOR JOHN TORGERSON, noted that SB
137 would extend the first year allocation provisions of a
new program enacted in the 21st Legislature via SB 289
(Chapter 132 SLA 00).

Ms. Jackson added that because the program established in
2000 was new and tinme consum ng devel opnent of regul ations
regarding its admnistration were necessary, funds coll ected
the first year of the programwere directly allocated to the
University of Alaska, the Al aska Vocational and Technical
Center, and the Kotzebue Technical Center. The public
funded institutions provide technical and vocati onal
progranms for Alaskans in urban and rural areas. A review of
the wuses of the first year funds by these public
institutions clearly shows how necessary those funds are.

Ms. Jackson stated that after a review of the expenditures
fromthe first year's collection, SB 137 extends the date of

House Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 04/ 01 1:52 PM



direct allocation to the nanmed public institutions for two
nore years. The purpose of the extension is to allow those
institutions to properly prepare their respective facilities
for the influx of new students into the system

Vi ce-Chair Bunde noted that half of the noney would be going
to the University and he asked if it would be included in
their operating budget request of $18.4 mllion dollars.
Ms. Jackson replied that all the funds would be “neshed”
together and would be counted as part of the University's
request.

Representative Croft asked how nuch the University received
in the Alaska Human Resources Investnent Council (AHRIC
grants per year. M. Jackson noted that the University has
never received noney from that grant program The
University has received sone noney from the State Training
Enmpl oynent Program (STEP) program She noted that it was
intended that accredited institutions would receive funding
fromthat program

Representative Croft asked if this was “new noney”. (Y
Jackson acknow edged that it was.

Representative Harris noted for the record that |ast year he
initially opposed simlar |egislation, however, in the end
he did support it if the University was wlling to
distribute the noney to a nunmber of institutions that do
vocati onal educational training. He pointed out that one of
the institutions in his district had not received any of
those funds for services. He reiterated that he did support
the effort to put noney toward vocational educati on.

Co-Chair WIllians stated that SB 137 would be HELD in
Commttee for further consideration.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 2:35 P. M

House Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 04/ 01 1:52 PM



